YORKSHIRE CANCER NETWORK
Gynaecology Nurses Group

Minutes of the meeting held on
Tuesday 29 November 2005
Syndicate Room 1, Learning and Development Centre,
The Calderdale Royal Hospital

Present: Pat Marsden (chair person today)  Apologies:  Cheryl Downes
Cheryl Downes Robyn Wells
Carol Hancock Lynn Jackson
Jo Higgins Beverly Hurst
Marion Webb
ACTION
1. Introduction Pat introduced Zoe Smithurst, Clerical Co-

ordinator to the group who had come to
minute the meeting.

2. Apologies Robyn, Lynne Beverly

3. Previous Minutes Cheryl circulated the minutes of the last
meeting and all agreed that they were a true
record.

4. Patient Information Carol informed the group that everyone had

met to update booklets, she had the all
changes, and when they are finished she will
pass on the Cheryl, to pass on to Jane Garred.
Carol said that Keeley had also asked her for a
copy and a copy of the Ward 2 leaflet. Jo
asked about the Vulva leaflet and mentioned
that this needed to be changed from a PDF file
to a Word document. As mentioned Medical | Carol Higgins
[lustrations will not change any wording but | and Cheryl
will format them. Downes

5. Service Improvement Pat had met with Lisa Williams, Lead
Manager for Cancer Services at CHT who
expressed her concern about how the
centralisation process would be explained to
patients and she was wondered if the centre
would be willing to produce a single A5 sheet
explaining this process.

Cheryl asked if this could be a statement that
goes in the cancer centre information leaflet.
If a small leaflet on centralisation was done
then anyone asking about it could be given the
information.

All agreed that it should not come from the
group. It was questioned if this was a service
improvement issue and perhaps it would need
to come from the Network. Pat has a meeting
with Debbie Wheeler and Lisa Williams next

Page 1 of 7




week and she will mention this then. Jo’s
thoughts were that the group could maybe do
a draft and take it to the next Network
meeting. It should be based on fact or
something out of the Service Improvement

Await outcome
from January

Guide. That this is a government initiative/not | Network Mtg
a local one. 2006
5. Formal Recognition of the | The group had previously discussed getting Group to
Group formal recognition. forward
Cheryl has spoken to Helen Ryan and she said | information to
that the group needed to put together some Helen Ryan

terms of reference, a membership list, minutes
from previous meetings and let her have these
then she would arrange for them putting on
the Yorkshire Cancer Nurses Network Group
web site.

Cheryl said it might be an idea to use the
Network terms of reference as a template and
adjust this for the groups. All agree. Jo said
that the information is there, it is just a case of
formalising it.

Cheryl went onto to discuss the group still
needed a “chair person?

Carol added that she had met with June
Toovey who is the Lead Nurse at Bradford
and works part time as the Lead Network
Nurse she had invited Carol to meet with her
as she thought she was the “chair” of the

group.

June told Carol that the group needed to have
a Network Chair.

Carol said that within the group there should
be a chair and a vice chair so that if the chair
was not able to attend a Network meeting then
the vice chair could go on behalf of the
chairperson.

Cheryl added that this was why she felt it was
the logical solution to have the same chair.
All agreed with this.

Carol and Cheryl said if there was anyone in
the group who definitely did not want to
become vice chair to let someone know as
soon as possible.

Group to wait
for outcome
from January
2006 Network
Meeting

6. Fixed Agenda Items

Service Improvement

To be discussed
at next Network
Meeting

Page 2 of 7




Conferences/Study Days

The Group agreed to share information and
circulate to each other. Jo commented on the
2 day Macmillan Course she had attended
which covered how to write an article and
have it published, this was very interesting
and useful. Jo will circulate information and
will talk with the group about this at the next
meeting.

Pat had attended the Parliament meeting
“Britain Against Cancer” with Tracey Adams.
Pat said this was poorly attended. Not enough
professionals were there to give a healthy
debate.

Jo said teaching was going very well, lots of
people attended the Vulval Cancer sessions
and new ideas were needed to maintain this.

Pat mentioned her meetings with her local
Gynaecology Link Nurses and how well these
are working.

Carol thanked all who had completed the
Leadership Questionnaire, as it was “horrible
but thanks to those who had taken the time to
do it

Pat was doing a teaching session at Kirkwood
Hospice on the principals of breaking bad
news.

Jo Higgins

7. Study Day — May 2006

Contacted 5 different reps but no money has
been received as yet. Clinimed have offered
to sponsor the day and are happy to give £250.

Pat and Cheryl are setting the programme for
the day and arranging the speakers.

Elaine Davis and her partner are invited to
speak about “how life goes on and the effects
it has” There is to be a session on Vulval
Cancer from Mr Choy. Carol Jones from
Vaco is doing a session on Vulval cancer from
the patients perspective, Pat said this would be
very positive and interesting as Carol had
spoken at her link nurse group

There would be a session on “cancer induced
infertility” Jo suggested a patient from York,
and commented that she would be a very good
speaker for this session.

Page 3 of 7




Jo said she would contact the menopause
nurse to ask if a patient could be contacted to
give a talk on the session “treatment induced
menopause” Jo had a 29-year-old patient in
mind but was not sure how well they would
speak. Cheryl mentioned a patient of hers
who could be asked. This patient has done a
documentary programme for the BBC and has
had several articles in magazines and would
make a good speaker for this session.

Pat has written to Lesley Dunlop the lady who
plays the District Nurse in the ITV
programme “Where The Heart Is” to ask her
to chair the study day no reply has been
received yet. She has also written to Philip
Pattinson to ask him if he would chair the day
but again has not had a reply.

Help -Everyone to try getting sponsorship for
the day from a rep.

Pat has also sent letters to a few bookshops,
To ask if they would come and do a display of
books covering the cancer topics. Pat has
the name of the Organon rep that she will
contact. Clinimed for the stoma side. Chris
Gleed to be contacted for lymphoedema.
Replens have also agreed to come. Cheryl has
spoken to Jo Rule who would be happy to
come in her new role.

Vaginal dilators — Cheryl seen samples if a
new dilator — very good ! Was going to try
and get some funding to purchase these to
have as trial. Carol asked how well they
compare to others and Cheryl said they were
much better and cheaper

There was an article in the Cancer Nursing
Practice but Cheryl’s fear was that there was
no mention of best practice or national
guidelines.

Cheryl had designed the poster and
programme the fee for the day is £10 as
agreed previously. Carol asked if any help
was needed for the day with paper work,
certificates etc. In terms of help on the day
everyone will be there on the day and also Pat
has asked Zoe and another admin colleague

Jo
Higgins/Cheryl
Downes to
contact Jane to
ask her to do
this.

Pat
Marsden/Cheryl
Downes and Jo
Higgins

Pat Marsden

Cheryl Downes
to chase up.

Page 4 of 7




who have agreed to help out on the day. Pat
has a volunteer also to help.

A good idea and one that has been done at
other study days is to give attendees a “goodie
bag” containing freebees, pens paper,
chocolates etc. Pat has already started to
contacted different companies and people to
see if they can contribute to this. Cheryl
suggested putting a quiz sheet in. She has one
on sweets, which would be good to use.

A HRT rep is still needed. Cheryl
commented that they had tried to get hold of
one before and this had been difficult. Carol
said that she would ask Ann Norman, as she is
the Menopause person in clinic.

Pat and Cheryl will visit the venue after
Christmas to have a look round. There is a
separate room for lunch for the day. The
lunch will be buffet style. Cheryl mentioned
that the main room for the day is huge so the
reps will have their stands in the room.

A good incentive for the day would be to have
a prize. Everyone could have a ticket
underneath his or her chair and at the end of
the day to look underneath to see if they had a
winning envelope. The group thought that a
book voucher would be nice for the prize.

Pat
Marsden/Cheryl
Downes

Carol Hancock

8. Carol’s meeting with June
Toovey

June Toovey works on a Wednesday and
Friday for the Network as Lead Nurse and the
rest of her time she works back in Bradford.

She wanted to meet to find out what was
happening with the group. Carol said she
informed her about things that the group was
doing and what was in the pipeline etc.

Carol said she told June about the
Information Leaflets and a little bit about
Nurse Led Clinics. June asked what was
going on with the clinics. Jo mentioned VE’s
and the issues around this. Carol said that
June had mentioned that this was a concern.

June had asked about terms of reference for
the group but overall all was very impressed
with the work the group is doing.

June had talked about support and how the
Network could support the group. She said

Page 5 of 7




that in January there would be another admin
person working in her team and wondered
whether she will be able to offer site-specific
nurses some admin support. In order for this
to happen it is very important she thought to
have a designated chair for at least a year or 2.
June said that this support would more than
likely come from Leeds or Cookridge. Carol
mentioned that this would mean everyone
travelling to Leeds for the meetings and was
not sure if this was best and if it out weighed
having secretarial support? Carol said that
she did question the use of a dictaphone and
whether someone could transcribe the minutes
and she said she would look into this when
she meets with her staff in January 2006.

June also asked about how the group works
and how each nurse works differently and she
asked if someone left how would we justify a
replacement?

The group all thought that this was a Trust
issue. Carol said she agreed but June was
asking what support could be offered in this
situation. Carol mentioned that some of the
group do home visits and others don’t, but if
two patients were sat in the same ward one
gets a visit and the other doesn’t how is this
justified. June said if there is a proven benefit
from a patient receiving a home visit should
everyone being trying to provide this service?
Pat wondered if this was linked to
“Keyworker” role. The group felt that an
area to look at should be the passing patients
over to the Primary Care Teams as all felt that
patients are kept for a long time creating
greater case loads.

June said that she would attend a meeting with
the group and Carol said she could invite her
to the next meeting in January 2006. All
agreed. Pat asked the group if the Lead
Nurses should be asked to come to group
meetings so that they are aware how closely
the group works together. All agreed. Carol
said that this could go in the terms of
reference. The group agreed that this was a
good idea even thought they may be the first
to think of this, it also may be a way of being
heard.

Carole to get
feedback from
June Toovey

All agreed that
this needed
addressing by
the PCT’s
Palliative
patients should
be passed on.

Page 6 of 7




9. Agenda for Change

Some of the group have been assimilated and
banded on what they had hoped for but some
have not! An article from the “Cancer
Management” Journal was shared with the
group, the colorectal nurses had found it
useful reading when they had been for their
re-matching.

Cheryl commented that the problem was that
the banding was done from the job description
and the requirements of the job, not on the
qualifications and experience of the nurse. In
some cases nurses can be over qualified for
the job they are doing.

Cheryl commented that she has had to write
her own job description and compare with
others but her role is so different from others
and it has been difficult. Jo agreed that that’s
what they had done.

10. Peer Review

Cheryl commented that the feedback on whole
from peer review was “glowing”. One of the
Lead Nurses on the panel had commented on
was how committed the network team was.

Cheryl thought a good forum would be to
discuss peer review at the Network meeting.

11. Date and Time of next 11™ January 2006
meeting St James University Hospital
After MDT

Carol Hancock arranging Venue
Apologises from Pat Marsden already
received

Page 7 of 7




